EXHIBIT

BY-LAWS

CENTURY PARK COHDOHINIUM

SECTION 1

Forsyth County, North Carolina

ARTICLE I

Plan of Unit Ownership

Section 1. Unit Ownership. The Property located in the County of Forsyth.

State of North Carolina (hereinafter called the "Property"), has been submitted to the provisions of the Unit Ownership Act of the State of North Carolina (Chapter 47A. Section 47A-1, et seq. of the General Statutes of North Carolina), by the Declaration recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds in and for Forsyth County, North Carolina, simultaneously herewith, and shall hereinafter be known as the "Century Park Condominium, Section 1" (hereinafter called the "Condominium" or the "Section 1

Section 2. Applicability of By-Laws. The provisions of these By-Laws are applicable to the Property of the Condominium and to the use and occupancy thereof. All present and future owners, mortgagees, lessees and occupants of Units and their employees, and any other person who may use the facilities of the Property in any manner, are subject to these By-Laws, the Declaration and the Rules and Regulations. ceptance of a Deed or conveyance or the entering into of a Lease or the act of occupancy of a Unit shall conclusively establish the acceptance and ratification of these By-Laws, the Rules and Regulations, and the provisions of the Declaration, as they may be amended from time to time, by the person so acquiring, leasing or occupying a Unit and shall constitute and evidence an agreement by such person to comply with the same.

Section 3. Common Plan for Condominium Tracts. The Property comprising the Condominium together with the improvements thereon which have been and will be constructed by the Declarant is the first condominium of a series of eight (8) condominiums which the Declarant proposes to create, all of which will be located within (but not necessarily encompassing all) the real property, lying and being in Forsyth County, North Carolina, more fully described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. All of said condominiums are being developed under a common plan. Each parcel or tract of land with the improvements thereon or to be placed thereon submitted to the condominium form of ownership pursuant to this common plan shall constitute a separate condominium property and shall be designated consecutively as "Century Park Condominium, Section 1" and "Century Park Condominium, Section 2," "Century Park Condominium, Section 3," "Century Park Condominium, Sec etc. All of the condominiums developed under the aforesaid common plan may be referred to collectively as Century Park Condominiums.

ARTICLE II

Association of Unit Owners

Section 1. Composition. Land Limited of America, Inc., its successors and assigns, hereafter "Developer," and all the Owners of Units contained in the Condominium, shall be members of an Association of Unit Owners, which is a non-profit Corporation, "Contained the "Contained Condominium Association," incorporated under the name of the "Century Park Section One Condominium Association."
hereinafter called the "Association." This Association shall have the responsibility of administering the Section 1 Condominium, establishing the means and methods of collecting the contributions to the common expenses, arranging for the management of the Condominium, and performing all of the other acts that may be required to be performed by the Association of Unit Owners by the Unit Ownership Act, the Declaration and these By-Laws. Except as to those matters which the Unit Ownership Act specifically. requires to be performed by the vote of the Owners of the Units, the administration of the foregoing responsibilities shall be performed by the Board of Directors, as more particularly set forth in Article III.

THIS INSTRUMENT DRAFTED BY HOUSE AND BLANCO, P. A., ATTORNEYS By: David B. Blanco .

Section 2. Annual Meetings. The first annual meeting of members shall be held within 90 days after the establishment of Century Park Condominium, Section One, and each subsequent regular annual meeting of the members shall be held on December 1 of each year thereafter, at the hours of 7:30 o'clock P. M. If the day for the annual meeting of the members is a Saturday, Sunday or a legal holiday, the meeting will be held at the same hour on the first day following which is not a

...

Section 3. Place of Meetings. Meetings of the Association of Unit Owners shall be held at the principal office of the Condominium or at such other suitable place convenient to the Owners, as may be designated by the Board of Directors.

Section 4. Special Meetings. It shall be the duty of the President to call a special meeting of the Association of Unit Owners if so directed by resolution of the Board of Directors or upon a Petition signed and presented to the Secretary by Owners owning not less than 25% of the Percentage Interests of all Owners. The notice of any special meeting shall state the time and place of meeting and the purpose thereof. No business shall be transacted at a special meeting except as

Section 5. Notice of Meetings. It shall be the duty of the Secretary to mail a notice of each annual or special meeting of the Owners at least ten (10) but not more than twenty (20) days prior to such meeting, stating the purpose thereof, as well as the time and place where it is to be held, to each Owner of record, at such address as each Owner shall have designated by notice in writing to the Secretary. The mailing of a notice of meeting in the manner provided in this Section shall be

Section 6. Adjournment of Meetings. If any meetings of the Association of Unit Owners cannot be held because a quorum is not present, Owners owning a majority of the Percentage Interests who are present at such meeting, either in person or by proxy, may adjourn the meeting to a time not less than forty-eight (48) hours from

Section 7. Quorum. The presence at the meeting of members entitled to cast, or of proxies entitled to cast, one-tenth (1/10) of the votes of the membership shall constitute a quorum for any action except as otherwise provided in the Declaration or these By-Laws. If, however, such quorum shall not be present or represented at any meeting, the members entitled to vote thereat shall have power to adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum as aforesaid shall be present or be represented.

Section 8. Order of Business. The order of business at all annual meetings of the Association of Unit Owners shall be as follows:

Roll call.

Proof of notice of meeting. (b)

Reading of minutes of preceding meeting. (c)

(d) Reports of Officers.

(e) Report of Board of Directors.

keports of Committees. (f)

Election of Inspectors of Election (when so required).

Election of members of the Board of Directors (when so required). (i)

New business. (i)

Section 9. Title to Units. Title to Units may be taken in the name of an individual or in the names of two or more persons, as tenants in common or as joint tenants or as tenants by the entirety, or in the name of a Corporation or Partnership, or in the name of a fiduciary.

Section 10. <u>Voting</u>. Voting at all meetings of the Association of Unit Owners shall be on a percentage basis and the percentages of the vote to which each Owner is entitled shall be the Percentage Interest assigned to his Unit in the Declaration. Where the ownership of a Unit is in more than one person, then the person who shall be entitled to cast the vote of that Unit shall be the person named in a certificate signed by all of the owners of the Unit and filed with the Secretary. Such certificate shall be valid until revoked by a subsequent certificate. Whereever the approval or disapproval of an Owner is required by the Unit Ownership Act, the Declaration or these By-Laws, such approval or disapproval shall only be made by the person who would be entitled to cast the vote for the Owner of such Unit at any meeting of the Association of Unit Owners. Except where a greater majority of the Owners is required by the Unit Ownership Act, the Declaration, or these By-Laws. a majority of the Owners is required to adopt decisions at any meeting of the Association of Unit Owners. If the Developer or the Board of Directors owns or holds title to one or more Units, the Developer or the Board of Directors, as the case may be, shall have the right at any meeting of the Association of Unit Owners to cast the votes to which

Section 11. Proxies. A vote may be cast in person or by proxy. Proxies may be valid only for the particular meeting designated therein and must be filed with the Secretary before the appointed time of the meeting.

Section 12. Majority of Owners. As used in these By-Laws, the term "majority of the Owners" shall mean those Owners having more than fifty percent (50%) of the aggregate Percentage Interests of all Owners.

Section 13. Conduct of Meeting. of the Association of Unit Owners and the Secretary-Treasurer shall keep the minutes The President shall preside over all meetings of the meeting and record in a minute book all resolutions adopted by the meeting as well as a record of all transactions occurring thereat. Roberts Rules of Order shall govern the conduct of all meetings of the Association of Unit Owners when not in conflict with the Declaration, these By-Laws or the Unit Ownership Act.

ARTICLE III

Board of Directors

Section 1. Number and Qualification. The affairs of the Condominium shall be governed by a Board of Directors of five (5) Directors, who must be members of the Association, except that those designated by the Developer, as Owner of Units, may be Officers or Directors of the Developer or such other persons as Developer may designate.

Section 2. Powers and Duties. The Board of Directors shall have all of the powers and duties necessary for the administration of the affairs of the Condominium and may rected to be exercised and done by the Unit Ownership Act or by these By-Laws dishall have the power from time to adopt any Rules and Regulations deemed necessary for the enjoyment of the Condominium provided such Rules and Regulations shall not be in delegate to one of its members the authority to act on behalf of the Board of Directors shall matters relating to the duties of the Managing Agent, if any, which might arise belaws or by any resolution of the Association of Unit Owners that may hereafter be adopted, Laws or by any resolution of the Association of Unit Owners that may hereafter be adopted, the Board of Directors shall have the power to, and be responsible for, the following:

(a) Preparation of an Annual Budget, in which there shall be established the contribution of each Owner to the Common Expenses.

Contribution of each Owner to the Common Expenses.

(b) Making assessments against Owners to defray the costs and expenses of the Owners, and establishing the means and methods of collecting such assessments from the Owners, and establishing the period of the installment payment of the annual assessment against each where for his proportionate share of the Common Expenses shall be vance on the first day of each month for said month.

(c) Providing for the operation, care, upkeep, maintenance, and surveillance of all of the Property and services of the Condominium.

(d) Designating, hiring and dismissing the personnel necessary for the maintenfor the Property, and, where appropriate, providing for the compensation of such personnel

for the Property, and, where appropriate, providing for the compensation of such personnel and for the purchase of equipment, supplies and material to be used by such personnel in property of the Owners.

(a) Collecting the Assessments against the Owners describes the common

of in a bank deposition which it shall approve, and using the proceeds to carry out the administration of the Property.

(a) Collecting the assessments against the Owners, depositing the proceeds thereministration of the Property.

(b) Making and Amending Dules and Deculations respecting the use of the Property.

(f) Making and amending Rules and Regulations respecting the use of the Property. (g) Acting as the Insurance Trustee in the manner provided by these By-Laws.

(h) Opening of bank accounts on behalf of the Condominium and designating the signatories required therefor.

(i) Purchasing or leasing or otherwise acquiring in the name of the Board of Directors, or its designee, corporate or otherwise, on behalf of all Owners, Units

offered for sale or lease to the Board of Directors.

(j) Selling, leasing, mortgaging, voting the votes appurtenant to (other than for the election of members of the Board of Directors), or otherwise dealing with Units acquired by, and subleasing Units leased by, the Board of Directors, or its designee, corporate or otherwise, on behalf of all Owners.

(k) Purchasing of Units at foreclosure or other judicial sales in the name

of the Board of Directors, or its designee, corporate or otherwise, on behalf of all

(1) Organizing corporations to act as designees of the Board of Directors

in acquiring title to, or leasing, Units on behalf of all Owners.

(m) Making, or contracting for the making of, repairs, additions, and improvements to, or alterations of, the Property and repairs to, and restoration of, the Property, in accordance with the other provisions of these By-Laws, after damage or destruction by fire or other casualty.

(n) Enforcing by legal means the provisions of the Declartion, these By-Laws and the Rules and Regulations for the use of the Property adopted by it, and bringing any proceedings which may be instituted on behalf of the Owners.

(o) Obtaining and carrying insurance against casualties and liabilities, as provided in Article VI of these By-Laws, and paying the premium cost thereof.

(p) Paying the cost of all services rendered to the Condominium and not billed to Owners of individual Units.

(q) Keeping books with detailed accounts in chronological order of the race pts and expenditures affecting the Property, and the administration of the Condominium, specifying the maintenance and repair expenses of the Common Areas and Facilities and any other expenses incurred. The said books and vouchers accrediting the entries thereupon shall be available for the examination by the Owners, their duly authorized agents or attorneys, during general business hours on working days at the times and in the manner that shall be set and announced by the Board of Directors for the general knowledge of the Owners. All books and records shall be kept in accordance with good and accepted accounting practices, and the same shall be audited at least once a year by an outside auditor employed by the Board of Directors who stal: not be a resident of the Condominium, or an Owner of a Unit therein. The cost of such audit shall be a Common Expense.

(r) The Board of Directors shall notify the mortgagee of any Unit of any default by the Owner of such Unit whenever requested in writing by such mortgagee

(s) To do such other things and acts not inconsistent with the Unit Syngership Act and with the Declaration which it may be authorized to do by a resolu-

Section 3. Managing Agent. The Board of Directors may employ for the Condc. inium a professional Managing Agent at a compensation established by the Poard of Directors, to perform such duties and services as the Board of Directors shall authorize, including, but not limited to, the duties listed in paragraphs (a), (c), (d), (e), (ii), (o), (r), and (s) of Section 2 of this Article III. The Board of Directors may delegate to the Managing Agent all of the powers granted to the Board of Directors by these By-Laws other than the powers set forth in paragraphs (b). (f), (g), (h), (i), (j), (k), (l), and (n) of Section 2 of this Article III.

Section 4. Election and Term of Office. At the first annual meeting of the Association of Unit Owners, the term of office of two (2) members of the Board of Directors shall be fixed at three (3) years, the term of office of two (2) members of the Board of Directors shall be fixed at two (2) years, and the term of office of one (1) member of the Board of Directors shall be fixed at one (1) year. At the expiration of the initial term of office of each respective member of the Board of Directors, his successor shall be elected to serve for the term of three (3) years. the marbers of the Board of Directors shall hold office until their respective successors shall have been elected by the Association of Unit Owners.

Section 5. Removal of Members of the Board of Directors. At any regular or special meeting duly called, any one or more of the members of the Board of Directors may be removed with or without cause by a majority of the Owners, and a successor may then and there be elected to fill the vacancy thus created. Any ten (10) days' notice of the calling of the meeting and the purpose thereof and he shall be given the opportunity to be heard at the meeting. Notwithstanding anything in this Section to the contrary, so long as the Developer owns one (1) the Board of Directors may be removed without the consent of the Developer and in such event the Developer shall select and designate his successor.

Section 6. Vacancies. Vacancies in the Board of Directors caused by any reason other than the removal of a director by a vote of the Association of Unit Owners shall be filled by a vote of a majority of the remaining directors at a special meeting of the Board of Directors held for that purpose promptly after the occurrence of any such vacancy, even though the directors present at such meeting may constitute less than a quorum, and each person so elected shall be a member of the Board of Directors for the remainder of the term of the member so removed and until a successor shall be elected at the next annual meeting of the Association of Unit Owners; provided, however, that the vacancy of any Director designated by the Developer pursuant to a right of the Developer to make such

Section 7. Organization Meeting. The first meeting of the members of the Board of Directors following the annual meeting of the Association of Unit Owners shall be held within ten (10) days thereafter at such time and place as of Directors shall have been elected, and no notice shall be necessary to the newly meeting, providing a majority of the whole Board of Directors shall be present thereat.

Section 8. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at such time and place as shall be determined from time to time by a majority of the directors, but at least two such meetings shall be held during each to each director, by mail or telegraph, at least three (3) business days prior to the day named for such meeting.

Section 9. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the President on three (3) business days' notice to each director, the meeting or special meeting. Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be the President or Secretary-Treasurer in like manner and on like notice on the written request of at least two (2) directors.

Section 10. Waiver of Notice. Any director may, at any time, in writing, waive notice of any meeting of the Board of Directors, and such waiver shall be meeting of the Board of Directors shall constitute a waiver of notice by him of the Board of Directors shall constitute a waiver of notice by him of the Board of Directors, no notice shall be required and any business may be transacted at such meeting.

- Page 5 -

Section 11. Quorum of Board of Directors. At all meetings of the Board of Directors, a majority of the directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the votes of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the decision of the Board of Directors. If at any meeting of the Board of Directors there shall be less than a quorum present, a majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time. At any such adjourned meeting at which a quorum is present, any business which might have been transacted at the meeting originally called may be transacted without further notice.

Section 12. Fidelity Bonds. The Board of Directors shall obtain adequate fidelity bonds for all officers and employees of the Condominium handling or responsible for Condominium funds. The premiums on such bonds shall constitute a Common Expense.

Section 13. Compensation. No director shall receive any compensation from actual expenses he incurs in performing any of his duties as Director.

Section 14. Conduct of Meetings. The President shall preside over all meetings of the Board of Directors and the Secretary-Treasurer shall keep a Minute Board of Directors recording therein all resolutions adopted by the such meetings. Roberts Rules of Order shall govern the conduct of the meetings of the Board of Directors when not in conflict with the Declaration, these By-Laws or the Unit Ownership Act.

Section 15. Liability of the Board of Directors. The members of the Board of Directors shall not be liable to the Owners for any mistake in judgment, negligence, or otherwise except for their own individual willful misconduct or bad faith. The Owners shall indemnify and hold harmless each of the directors from and against all contractual liability to others arising out of contracts made by the Board of Directors on behalf of the Owners unless any such contract shall have been made in bad faith or contrary to the provisions of the Declaration or of these By-Laws. It is intended that the members of the Board of Directors shall have no personal liability with respect to any contract made by them on behalf of the Owners. It is also intended that the out of the aforesaid indemnity in favor of the members of the Board of Directors or be limited to such proportion of the total liability thereunder as his Percentage Interest bears to the Percentage Interests of all of the Owners. Every agreement made by the Board of Directors or by the Managing Agent on behalf of the Owners shall fobtainable, provide that the members of the Board of Directors, or the Managing Agent, as the case may be, are acting only as agents for the Owners and shall have no personal liability thereunder shall be limited to such proportion of the total liability thereunder as his Percentage Interest bears to the Percentage Interests of all Owners.

ARTICLE IV

Officers .

Section 1. Designation. The principal officers of the Condominium shall be the President, the Vice President, and the Secretary-Treasurer, all of whom shall treasurer, an assistant secretary, and such other officers as in its judgment may be not other officers as in its judgment may be any other officers may be, but shall not be required to be, members of the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Election of Officers. The officers of the Condominium shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at the organization meeting of each new Board of Directors and shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board of Directors.

Section 3. Removal of Officers. Upon the affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Board of Directors, any officer may be removed, either with or of Directors, or at any special meeting of the Board of Directors called for such purpose.

Section 4. President. The President shall be the chief executive of the Condominium. He shall preside at all meetings of the Association of Unit Owners and of the Board of Directors. He shall have all of the general powers and duties which are incident to the office of president of a stock corporation organized under the Business Corporation Act of the State of North Carolina, including, but not limited to, the power to appoint committees from among the Owners from time to time as he may in Condominium.

Section 5. <u>Vice President</u>. The Vice President shall take the place of the President and perform his duties whenever the President shall be absent or unable Directors shall appoint some other member of the Board of Directors to act, the Board of of the President, on an interim basis. The Vice President shall also perform such other the President.

Section 6. Secretary-Treasurer. The Secretary-Treasurer shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the Association of Unit Owners and of the Board of Directors; shall have charge of such books and papers as the Board of Directors may direct; he sible for keeping full and accurate financial records and books of account showing all shall be responsible for the deposit of all monies and other valuable effects in the name of the Board of Directors, or the Managing Agent, in such depositories as may perform all the duties incident to the office of secretary and treasurer of a stock Carolina.

Section 7. Agreements, Contracts, Deeds, Checks, etc. All agreements, contracts, deeds, leases, checks and other instruments of the Condominium shall be executed by any two officers of the Condominium or by such other person or persons as may be

Section 8. <u>Compensation of Officers</u>. No officer shall receive any compensation from the Condominium for acting as such.

ARTICLE V

Operation of the Property

Section 1. Determination of Common Expenses and Assessments Against Owners.

of the twelve-month period commencing on Octoberlof each year and terminating on Sept-

Page 7 -

- (b) Preparation of Approval of Budget. Each year on or before September 1st, the Board of Directors shall adopt a budget for the Condominium containing an estimate of the total amount which it considers necessary to pay the cost of maintenance, management, operation, repair and replacement of the common areas and facilities and those parts of the Units as to which it is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to maintain, repair and replace, and the cost of wages, materials, insurance premiums, water and sewer charges, services, supplies and other expenses that may be declared to be common expenses by the Declaration, the Act, these By-Laws or a Resolution of the Association of Unit Owners, and which will be required during the ensuing fiscal year from the administration, operation, maintenance and repair of the Property and the rendering to the Owners of all related services. Such budget shall also include such reasonable amounts as the Board of Directors considers necessary to provide working capital for the Condominium, a general operating reserve, and reserves for contingencies and replacements. The Board of Directors shall send to each Owner a copy of the budget, in a reasonably itemized form which sets forth the amount of the common expenses payable by each Owner, on or before September 15, preceding the fiscal year to which the budget applies. The said budget shall constitute the basis for determining each Owner's contribution for the common expenses of the Condominium.
- (c) Assessment and Payment of Common Expenses. The total amount of the estimated funds required for the operation of the Property set forth in the budget for the fiscal year adopted by the Board of Directors shall be assessed against each. Owner in proportion to his respective Percentage Interest, and shall be a lien against each Owner's Unit as provided in the Unit Ownership Act and Article IX, Section 2(a) of these By-Laws. On or before the first day of each fiscal year, and the first day of each of the succeeding eleven (11) months in such fiscal year, each Owner shall be obligated to pay to the Board of Directors or the Managing Agent (as determined by the Board of Directors), one-twelfth (1/12th) of the assessment for such fiscal year made pursuant to the foregoing provisions. Within sixty (60) days after the end of each fiscal year, the Board of Directors shall supply to all Owners an itemized accounting of the common expenses for such fiscal year actually incurred and paid, together with a tabulation of the amounts collected pursuant to the budget adopted by the Board of Directors for such fiscal year, and showing the net amount over or short of the actual expenditures plus reserves. Any amount accumulated in excess of the amount required for actual expenses and reserves shall, if the Board of Directors deems it advisable. be credited according to each Owner's Percentage Interest to the next monthly installments due from Owners under the current fiscal year's budget, until exhausted, and any net shortage shall, if the Board of Directors deems it advisable, be added according to each Owner's Percentage Interest to the installments due in the succeeding six (6) months after the rendering of the accounting.
- (d) Reserves. The Board of Directors shall build up and maintain reasonable reserves for working capital, operations, contingencies and replacements. Extraordinary expenditures not originally included in the annual budget which may become necessary during the year shall be charged first against such reserves. If the reserves are inadequate for any reason, including non-payment of any Owner's assessment, the Board of Directors may at any time levy a further assessment, which shall be assessed against the Owners according to their respective Percentage Interests, and which may be payable in a lump sum or in installments as the Board of Directors may determine. The Board of Directors shall serve notice of any such further assessment on all Owners by a statement in writing giving the amount and reasons therefor, and such further assessment shall, unless otherwise specified, in the notice, become

effective with the next monthly payment which is due more than ten (10) days after the delivery or mailing of such notice of further assessment. All Owners shall be obligated to pay the adjusted monthly amount or, if the additional assessment is not payable in installments, the amount of such assessment.

- :

(e) <u>Initial Assessment</u>. When the first Board of Directors elected under these By-Laws takes office, it shall determine the budget, as defined in this Section, for the period commencing thirty (30) days after their election and ending at the end of the fiscal year in which their election occurs. Assessments shall be Section.

(f) Effect of Failure to Prepare or Adopt Budget. The failure or delay of the Board of Directors to prepare or adopt the annual budget for any fiscal year shall not constitute a waiver or release in any manner of an Owner's obligation to pay his allocable share of the Common Expense as herein provided, whenever the same shall be determined, and in the absence of any annual budget or adjusted budget, each Owner shall continue to pay the monthly charge at the then existing monthly rate established for the previous fiscal period until the monthly payment which is due more than ten (10) days after such new annual or adjusted budget shall have been mailed

(g) Accounts. All sums collected by the Board of Directors with respect to assessments against the Owners may be commingled into a single fund, but shall be held for each Owner in accordance with his Percentage Interest.

Section 2. Payment of Common Expenses. All Owners shall be obligated to pay the Common Expenses assessed by the Board of Directors pursuant to the provisions of Section 1 of this Article V. No Owner shall be liable for the payment of any part of the Common Expenses assessed against his Unit subsequent to a sale, transfer or other conveyance by him (made in accordance with the provisions of Article VIII of these By-Laws) of such Unit. The purchaser of a Unit shall be jointly and severally liable with the selling Owner for all unpaid assessments against the latter for his proportionate share of the Common Expenses up to the time of the conveyance, without prejudice to the purchaser's right to recover from the selling Owner the amounts paid by the purchaser therefor; provided, however, that any such purchaser shall be entitled to a statement from the Board of Directors or Managing Agent setting forth the amount of the unpaid assessments against the selling Owner and such purchaser shall not be liable for, nor shall the Unit conveyed be subject to a lien for, any unpaid assessments in excess of the amount therein set forth; and provided, further, that if a mortgagee of a first mortgage of record or other purchaser of a Unit obtains title to the Unit as a result of foreclosure of a first mortgage, such purchaser, its successors and assigns shall not be liable for, and such Unit shall not be subject to, a lien for the payment of Common Expenses assessed prior to the acquisition of title to such Unit by such purchaser pursuant to the foreclosure sale. Such unpaid share of Common Expenses assessed prior to the acquisition of title to such Unit by such purchaser pursuant to the foreclosure sale shall be deemed to be Common Expenses of the Unit, collectible from all Owners, including such purchaser at the foreclosure sale, in proportion to their respective Percentage Interests.

Section 3. <u>Collection of Assessments</u>. The Board of Directors shall take prompt action to collect any assessments for Common Expenses due from any Owner which remain unpaid for more than thirty (30) days from the due date for payment thereof.

Section 4. Statement of Common Expenses. The Board of Directors shall-promptly provide any Owner so requesting the same in writing, with a written statement of all unpaid assessments for common expenses due from such Owner.

Section 5. Maintenance and Repair.

- (a) By the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall be responsible for the maintenance, repair and replacement (unless necessitated by the negligence, Owner) of the following, the cost of which shall be charged to all Owners as a common expense:
- (1) All of the common areas and facilities, whether located inside
- (2) All exterior walls and exterior surfaces, the roof, party walls and all other portions of the Units which contribute to the support of any Building such as the outside walls of a Building and all fixtures on the exterior thereof, the boundary wall of Units, floor slabs, floor joists and attached ceilings, corridor and Unit party walls, but excluding, however, any interior walls, interior ceilings and interior floors of Units.
- (3) The sanitary and storm sewer systems and appurtenances, and all water and plumbing facilities and systems that are deemed common areas and facilities, and including all conduits, ducts, plumbing, wiring and other facilities for the furnishing of such utility services into two or more Units, but excluding therefrom all plumbing, fixtures, systems and parts thereof which are enjoyed by only a single unit and are located solely within the boundary of an individual Unit; and including, boundaries of any Unit; the roof and all roof drainage pipes, gutters and leaders.
- done or caused to be done by the Board of Directors in accordance therewith.
- (b) By the Owner. Except for the portions of his Unit required to be maintained, repaired and replaced by the Board of Directors, each Owner shall be own individual unit, including, but not limited to the following: any interior swalls, the balcony, patio or deck which is adjacent to the Unit, kitchen and bathroom fixtures and equipment, refrigerator and range, lighting, heating and air-conditioning plumbing system which are contained within his Unit. Each Owner shall keep the interior and in a clean and sanitary condition, and shall do all redecorating, painting and tion of his Unit. In addition, each Owner shall be responsible for all damages to any to make any of the repairs required to be made by him by this Section. Each Owner or interfere with the other Owners. Each Owner shall not unreasonably disturb of Directors or the Managing Agent any defect or need for repairs for which the Board of Directors is responsible.
- (c) Manner of Repair and Replacement. All repairs and replacements shall be substantially similar to the original construction and installation and shall be of first-class quality. The method of approving payment vouchers for all repairs and replacements shall be determined by the Board of Directors.

Section 6. Balconies and Patios. A balcony or patio which is appurtenant to a Unit and to which such Unit has sole access shall be for the exclusive use of the Owner of such Unit. The Owner of such Unit shall keep such balcony or patio in a clean and sanitary condition and free and clear of snow, ice and any accumulation of water, and shall also make all repairs thereto.

Section 7. Additions, Alterations or Improvements by Board of Directors. Whenever in the judgment of the Board of Directors the Common Areas and Facilities shall require the additions, alterations or improvements costing in excess of Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000) during any period of twelve (12) consecutive months, and the making of such additions, alterations, or improvements shall have been approved by a majority of the Owners, the Board of Directors shall proceed with such additions, alterations or improvements for the cost thereof as a Common Expense. Any additions, alterations or improvements costing Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000) or less during any period of twelve (12) consecutive months may be made by the Board of Directors without approval of the Owners and the cost thereof shall constitute part of the Common Expense. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if, in the opinion of not less than 80% of the members of the Board of Directors, such additions, alterations or improvements are exclusively or substantially exclusively for the benefit of the Owner or Owners requesting the same, such requesting Owners shall be assessed therefor in such proportion as they jointly approve or, if they are unable to agree thereon, in such proportions as may be determined by the Board of Directors.

Section 8. Additions, Alterations or Improvements by Owners. No Owner shall make any structural addition, alteration or improvement in or to his Unit without the prior written consent thereto of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall be obligated to answer any written request by any Owner for approval of a proposed structural addition, alteration or improvement in such Owner's Unit within thirty (30) days after such request, and its failure to do so within the stipulated time shall constitute a consent by the Board of Directors to the proposed addition, alteration or improvement. Any application to any governmental authority for a permit to make an addition, alteration or improvement in or to any Unit shall be executed by the Board of Directors only, without, however, incurring any liability on the part of the Board of Directors or any of them to any contractor, subcontractor or materialman on account of such addition, alteration or improvement, or to any person having any claim for injury to person or damage to property arising therefrom. The provision of this Section 8 shall not apply to Units owned by the Developer until such Units shall have been initially sold by the Developer and conveyed to the new Owner.

Section 9. Use of Common Areas and Facilities. An Owner shall not place or cause to be placed in the lobbies, vestibules, public halls, common stairways, or other common areas or common facilities, other than the areas designated as storage areas, any furniture, packages or object of any kind. The lobbies, vestibules, public halls, and common stairways shall be used for no purpose other than for normal transit through them.

Section 10. Right of Access. An Owner shall grant a right of access to his Unit to the Board of Directors or the Managing Agent, or any other person authorized by the Board of Directors or the Managing Agent, or any group of the foregoing for the purpose of making inspections or for the purpose of correcting any condition originating in his Unit and threatening another Unit or the Common Areas and Facilities, or for the purpose of performing installations, alterations or repairs to the mechanical, electrical, or television services or the Common Areas and Facilities in his Unit or elsewhere in the Property, or to correct any condition which violates the provisions of any mortgage covering another Unit, provided that requests for entry are made in advance and that any such entry is at a time reasonably convenient to the Owner. In case of an emergency, such right of entry shall be immediate, whether the Owner is present at the time or not.

Section 11. Rules and Regulations. Rules and Regulations concerning the operation and use of the Common Areas and Facilities and the Condominium in general may be promulgated and amended by the Board of Directors, provided that such Rules and Regulations are not contrary to or inconsistent with the Unit Ownership Act, the Declaration or the By-Laws. Copies of the Rules and Regulations shall be furnished by the Board of Directors to each Owner prior to the time when the same shall become effective.

Section 12. Water Charges and Sewer Rents. Water shall be supplied to the common areas and facilities through one or more meters and the Board of Directors shall pay, as a common expense, all charges for water so consumed, together with all related sewer rents, if any, arising therefrom, promptly after the bills for the same shall have been rendered. Water and sewer service shall be supplied directly to each Unit through a separate meter and each Owner shall be required to pay the bills for water and sewer services used by his Unit.

Section 13. Electricity and Gas. Electricity shall be supplied by the public utility company serving the area directly to each Unit through a separate meter and each Cumer shall be required to pay the bills for electricity consumed or used by his Unit. The electricity serving the common areas and facilities shall be separately metered, and the Board of Directors shall pay all bills for electricity consumed in such portions of the common areas and facilities as a common expense.

Section 14. Parking Spaces. Each of the enclosed garages located on the ground floor of some of the buildings which are designated on the Architectural Plans recorded simultaneously with the Declaration and these By-Laws, and all outside surface parking spaces designated on such Architectural Plans shall be for the exclusive use of the Owner of the Unit having the number corresponding to the number of such parking space. All other parts of the common areas and facilities identified as parking areas in the Architectural Plans recorded simultaneously with the Declaration and these By-Laws shall be used by the Owners for self-service parking purposes on a first-served basis. The cost of maintenance and repair of all parking areas shall be a common expense.

ARTICLE VI

Insurance

Section 1. Authority to Purchase. Except as otherwise provided in Section 3 of this Article VI, all insurance policies relating to the Property shall be purchased by the Board of Directors as Trustee for the Owners of the Units and their respective following provisions:

- (a) The Board of Directors shall obtain a single master policy covering physical damage for the entire Property for the benefit of the Association, the Unit Owners and their mortgagees, as their interests may appear, and provision shall be Unit Owners. The Policy shall name the Board of Directors and Insurance Trustee designated in Section 4 of this Article as insured parties, with appropriate language ments thereto shall be deposited with the Board of Directors, and provision shall be upon request.
- (b) In addition, the Board of Directors shall be required to make every effort to secure a master policy covering physical damage that will provide the following:
- (1) That the insurer waives its rights of subrogation to any claims against the Board of Directors, the Managing Agent, the Owners and their respective agents; and, in the case of the Owners, the members of their own household;

- (2) That the master policy may not be cancelled or substantially all mortgagees of Units.
- (3) That the net proceeds of such policies, shall be payable to the Board of Directors, or such other Insurance Trustee as designated in Section 4 of this Article.
- clause in favor of each mortgagee of a Unit, which shall provide that the loss, if interests may appear, subject, however, to the loss payment and adjustment provisions and 5 of this Article.
- and 5 of this Article.

 (c) All policies of insurance shall be written with a company licensed to do business in the State of North Carolina and holding a rating of "AAA" or better to by Best's Insurance Reports.
- by the Board of Directors hereunder be brought into contribution with insurance purchased by individual Owners or their mortgagees, unless otherwise required by North Carolina or other applicable law or insurance regulations.
- (e) Each Owner shall be required to notify the Board of Directors of One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00).
- (f) Any Owner who obtains individual insurance policies covering any portion of the Property, other than personal property belonging to such Owner, shall be required to file a copy of such individual policy or policies with the Board of Directors within thirty (30) days after the purchase of such insurance.

Section 2. Insurance Coverage.

- (a) The Board of Directors shall be required to obtain and maintain the following insurance: (1) fire insurance with extended coverage, vandalism, malicious mischief and windstorm endorsements, insuring the entire Property (including all of the Units and the bathroom and kitchen fixtures initially installed therein supplied or installed by Owners), together with all air-conditioning equipment and other service machinery appurtenant to a Unit and covering the interests of the Board of Directors and all Owners and their mortgagees, as their interests may appear, in amount equal to the maximum insurable replacement value of the Property, without necessary to meet the requirements of law; and (3) such other insurance as the Board of Directors may determine or as may be requested from time to time by a majority
- (b) The Board of Directors shall also be required to obtain and maintain, to the extent obtainable, public liability and property damage insurance in such limits as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine, insuring each member of the Board of Directors, the Managing Agent, and each Owner against any liability to the public or to the Owners (and their invitees, agents and employees) arising out of, or incident to, the ownership and/or use of the Common Areas and facilities. Said insurance shall be issued on a comprehensive liability basis and shall contain a cross liability endorsement under which the rights of a named insured under the policy shall not be prejudiced with respect to his action against another

named insured. The Board of Directors shall review such limits once each year, but in no event shall insurance be less than Two Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$200,000.00) with respect to any one person and Five Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$500,000.00) with respect to any one accident or occurrence and Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$50,000.00) with respect to any claim for property damage. It shall be the responsibility of each Owner to obtain, at his own expense, liability insurance with respect to his ownership and/or use of his Unit, and the Board of Directors shall not be responsible for obtaining such insurance.

(c) A duplicate original of the master policy of physical damage insurance, all renewals thereof, and all subpolicies or certificates issued thereunder, together with proof of payment of premiums, shall be delivered to all mortgagees of Units at least ten (10) days prior to expiration of the then current policies. Prior to obtaining any policy of fire insurance or any renewal thereof, the Board of Directors shall obtain an appraisal from an insurance company, or such ... other source as the Board of Directors may determine, of the full replacement value of the Property, without deduction for depreciation, for the purpose of determining the amount of physical damage insurance to be effected pursuant to this Section.

Section 3. Separate Insurance. Each Owner, at his own expense, shall keep in force comprehensive personal liability insurance for damage to person or property of others occurring within such Owner's Unit, another Unit, or upon the Common Areas and Facilities, in such amounts as the Board of Directors from time to time determine, but in no case less than One Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$100,000,00) for each occurrence. Fach Owner shall have the right at 160 and for each occurrence. Each Owner shall have the right, at his own expense, to obtain insurance coverage upon his personal property. No Owner shall acquire or maintain any insurance coverage which will cause the insurance coverage maintained by the Board of Directors pursuant hereto to be brought into contribution with such insurance coverage obtained by the Owner.

Section 4. Insurance Trustee.

(a) So long as the condominium shall exist, the Board of Directors shall be designated as the Insurance Trustee. If for any reason the Board of Directors desire to be removed, shall fail, refuse or cease to act as such, the Board of Directors shall have the right to designate any bank, trust company, savings and loan association, building loan association, insurance company, or any institutional lender as the Insurance Trustee, and all parties beneficially interested in such insurance coverage shall be bound thereby; provided, however, that prior to such designation of a new Insurance Trustee, the Board of Directors shall obtain the consent to such new Insurance Trustee of the mortgagee or mortgagees holding mortgages constituting first liens on at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the number of Units in the Condominium encumbered by mortgages. The Insurance Trustee at the time of the deposit of such policies and endorsements shall acknowledge that the policies and any proceeds thereof will be held in accordance with the terms of these By-Laws.

(b) The Insurance Trustee shall not be liable for payment of premiums. the renewal of the policies, the sufficiency of coverage, the form or contents of the policies, the correctness of any amounts received by it on account of the proceeds of any insurance policies, nor for the failure to collect any insurance proceeds. sole duty of the Insurance Trustee shall be to receive such proceeds as are paid to it and to hold the same in trust for the purpose elsewhere stated in these By-Laws, for the benefit of the Owners of the Units and their respective mortgagees.

Section 5. Board of Directors as Agent. The Board of Directors is hereby irrevocably appointed the Agent for each Owner of a Unit and for each mortgagee of a Unit and for each Owner of any other interest in the Property to adjust all claims arising under insurance policies purchased by the Board of Directors and to execute and deliver releases upon the payment of claims.

Section 6. Premiums. Premiums upon all insurance policies purchased by the Board of Directors shall be deemed to be a common expense.

ARTICLE VII

Repair and Reconstruction After Fire or Other Casualty

Section 1. When Repair and Reconstruction Are Required. In the event of damage to or destruction of all or any of the Buildings as a result of fire, or other casualty (unless more than two-thirds (2/3) of the Buildings are destroyed and at least three-fourths (3/4) of the Owners and at least three-fourths (3/4) of the mortgagees of Units in the Property, based upon one (1) vote for each mortgage owned, vote not to proceed with the reconstruction and repair of the Buildings), the Board of Directors shall arrange for and supervise the prompt repair and restoration of the Buildings (including any damaged Units, and any floor coverings or any kitchen or bathroom fixtures initially installed therein by the Developer, and replacements thereof installed by the Owners, but not including any other furniture, furnishings, fixtures, or equipment installed by the Owners in supervise the redecorating of his own Unit.

Section 2. Procedure for Reconstruction and Repair.

- (a) Cost Estimates. Immediately after a fire or other casualty causing damage to any Building, the Board of Directors shall obtain a reliable and detailed estimate of the cost of repairing and restoring the Building (including any damaged Units, and any floor coverings and kitchen and bathroom fixtures initially installed therein by the Developer, and replacements thereof installed by the Owner, but not Owner in the Unit) to a condition as good as that existing before such casualty. Such costs may also include professional fees and premiums for such bonds as the Board of Directors determines to be necessary.
- (b) Assessments. If the proceeds of insurance are not sufficient to defray the said estimated costs of reconstruction and repair as determined by the Board of Directors or if at any time during reconstruction and repair, or upon completion of reconstruction and repair, the funds for the payment of the costs thereof the Owners' respective Percentage Interests.
- (c) <u>Plans and Specifications</u>. Any such reconstruction or repair shall be substantially in accordance with the Plans and Specifications under which the Property was originally constructed.
- (d) Encroachments. Encroachments upon or in favor of Units which may be created as a result of such reconstruction or repair shall not constitute a claim or basis for any proceeding or action by the Owner upon whose property such encroachment exists, provided that such reconstruction was substantially in accordance with the Architectural Plans under which the Property was originally constructed. Such encroachments shall be allowed to continue in existence for so long as the reconstructed Building shall stand.

Section 3. Disbursmenets of Construction Funds.

(a) Construction Fund. The net proceeds of insurance collected on account of a casualty and the funds collected by the Board of Directors from assessments against Owners on account of such casualty shall constitute a construction fund which shall be disbursed in payment of the cost of reconstruction and repair in the manner set forth in this Section. The entire construction fund shall be disbursed by the Board of Directors as Insurance Trustee, or in the alternative, by the Insurance Trustee, if different from the Board of Directors.

- (b) <u>Method of Disbursement</u>. The construction fund shall be paid by the Board of Directors or the Insurance Trustee, as the case may be, in appropriate the work or supplying materials or services for the repair and reconstruction of the Duilding as are designated by the Board of Directors.
- (c) <u>Surplus</u>. It shall be presumed that the first monies disbursed in payment of the cost of reconstruction and repair shall be from insurance proceeds; of the reconstruction and repair for which the fund is established, such balance shall be distributed jointly to the Owners and their mortgagees who are the beneficial Owners of the fund, in proportion to the Owners' respective Percentage Interests.
- (d) Common Elements. When the damage is to both common areas and facilities and Units, the insurance proceeds shall be applied first to the cost of repairing the common areas and facilities and the balance to the cost of repairing the Units in the shares set forth above.
- (e) Certificate. The Insurance Trustee shall be entitled to rely upon a certificate executed by the President or Vice President, and the Secretary of the Condominium certifying (i) whether or not the damaged property is required to be reconstructed and repaired; (ii) the name of the payee and the amount to be paid with funds to be distributed are less than the assessments paid by it or whether surplus other matters concerning the holding and disbursing of any construction fund held by it.

 Any such certificate shall be delivered to the Insurance Trustee promptly after request.

Section 4. When Reconstruction is Not Required. If more than two-thirds (2/3) of the Buildings are destroyed by fire or other casualty and at least threefourths (3/4) of the Owners and at least three-fourths (3/4) of the mortgagees of Units in the Property, based upon one (1) vote for each mortgage owned, vote not to proceed with repair or restoration (1) the Property shall be deemed to be owned as tenants in common by the Unit Owners; (ii) the undivided interest in the Property owned by the Unit Owners as tenants in common which shall appertain to each Unit Owner small be the Percentage Interest previously owned by such Owner in the common areas and facilities; (iii) any liens affecting any of the Units shall be deemed to be transferred in accordance with the existing priorities to the Percentage Interest of the Unit Owner in the Property as provided herein; and (iv) the Property shall be subject to an action for partition at the suit of the Owner of any Unit, as if the Property was owned in common, in which event the net proceeds of sale, together with the net proceeds of insurance policies, if any, shall be considered as one Fund, and shall be divided by the Board of Directors or the Insurance Trustee, as the case may be, among the Owners of all the Units in proportion to their respective Percentage Interests, after first paying out of the share of each Owner, to the extent sufficient for this purpose, the amount of any unpaid liens on his Unit, in the order of the priority of such liens.

ARTICLE VIII

Mortgages of Units

Section 1. <u>Motice to Board of Directors</u>. An Owner who mortgages his Unit shall notify the Board of Directors of the name and address of his mortgagee and shall file a conformed copy of the Note and Mortgage with the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Notice of Unpaid Assessments for Common Expenses. The Board promptly report any then unpaid assessments for common expenses due from, or any other days from the date of the default.

Section 3. Notice of Default. The Board of Directors, when giving notice to an Owner of a default in paying an assessment for common expenses or any other default, shall send a copy of such notice to each holder of a mortgage covering such Owner's Unit whose name and address has theretofore been furnished to the Board of Directors.

Section 4. Mortgagee's Right of Inspection. First mortgagees of Units Owners at all reasonable times.

Section 5. Mortgagee's Priority. Notwithstanding any other provision of these documents, no Unit Owner, or other party, shall have priority over any rights to Unit Owners of Units pursuant to their mortgages in the case of a distribution Condominium Units and/or common areas and facilities.

ARTICLE IX

Compliance and Default

Section 1. Relief. Each Owner of a Unit shall be governed by, and shall comply with, all of the terms of the Declaration, these By-Laws, and the Rules and Regulations, and any amendments of the same. A default by an Owner shall entitle the Managing Agent, to the following relief:

- (a) Legal Proceedings. Failure to comply with any of the terms of the Declaration, these By-Laws, and the Rules and Regulations shall be grounds for relief which may include, without limiting the same, an action to recover any sums due for money damages, injunctive relief, foreclosure of the lien for payment of all assessments, any other relief provided for in these By-Laws, or any combination thereof, and any other relief afforded by a Court of competent jurisdiction, all of which relief may be sought by the Association of Unit Owners, the Board of Directors, the Managing Agent, or, if appropriate, by any aggrieved Owner.
- (b) Additional Liability. Each Owner shall be liable for the expense of all maintenance, repair or replacement rendered by his act, neglect or carelessness or the act, neglect or carelessness of any member of his family or his employees, agents or licensees, but only to the extent that such expense is not covered by the proceeds of insurance carried by the Board of Directors. Such liability shall include any increase in fire insurance rates occasioned by use, misuse, occupancy, or abandonent of any Unit or its appurtenances. Nothing contained herein, however, shall be construed as modifying any waiver by any insurance company of its rights of subrogation.
- default by an Owner, if the Association is the prevailing party, it shall be entitled to recover the costs of the proceeding, and such reasonable attorneys' fees as may be 6, Section 21.2, or its then equivalent section, or any other Statutory Section allowing
- (d) No Waiver of Rights. The failure of the Association of Unit Owners, the Board of Directors, or of an Owner to enforce any right, provision, covenant, or Regulations shall not constitute a waiver of the right of the Association of Unit Owners, the Board of Directors or the Cwmer to enforce such right, provision, covenant, or condition in the Future. All rights, remedies and privileges granted to the Association of Unit Owners, the Board of Directors, or any Owner pursuant to any term, provision, shall be deemed to be cumulative, and the exercise of any one or more thereof shall exercising the same from exercising such privileges as may be granted to such party by the Declaration, these By-Laws or the Rules and Regulations, or at law or in equity.
- (e) Interest. In the event of a default by any Owner in paying any common expenses or other sum assessed against him which continues for a period in excess of at the rate of eight percent (8%) per annum from the due date thereof.

(f) Abatement and Enjoyment of Violations by Owners. The violation of any rule or regulation adopted by the Board of Directors, or the breach of any By-Law contained herein, or the breach of any provision of the Declaration, shall give the Board of Directors the right, in addition to any other rights set forth in these By-Laws: (a) to enter the Unit in which, or as to which, such violation or breach exists and summarily to abate and remove, at the expense of the defaulting Owner, any structure, thing or condition that may exist therein contrary to the intent and meaning of the provisions hereof, and the Board of Directors shall not thereby be deemed guilty in any manner of trespass; or (b) to enjoin, abate or remedy by appropriate legal proceedings, either at law or in equity, the continuance of any such breach.

Section 2. Lien for Assessments.

- (a) In accordance with the Unit Ownership Act, any sum assessed by the Association of Unit Owners for the share of the Common Expenses chargeable to any Unit, and remaining unpaid for a period of thirty (30) days or longer, shall constitute a lien on such Unit when filed of record in the Office of the Clerk of Superior Court of Forsyth County, North Carolina in the manner provided therefor by the laws of the State of North Carolina. The Board of Directors, or the Managing Agent, may file or record such other or further notice of lien, or such other or confirm the establishment of such lien.
- (b) In any case where an assessment against an Owner is payable in installments, upon a default by such Owner in the payment of any single installment, which continues for ten (10) days after written notice of such default has been sent to the Unit Owner, the maturity of the remaining total of unpaid installments of such assessments may be accelerated, at the option of the Board of Directors, and the then balance owing may be declared due and payable in full by the service of notice to such effect upon the defaulting Owner by the Board of Directors or the Managing Agent.
- (c) The lien for contribution may be foreclosed in the manner provided by the laws of the State of North Carolina by suit brought in the name of the
 Board of Directors, or the Managing Agent, acting on behalf of the Association of
 Unit Owners. During the pendency of such suit the Owner shall be required to pay a
 or order of any Court having jurisdiction over such sale pursuant to any judgment
 proceeding shall have the right to the appointment of a receiver, if available under
 the then laws of the State of North Carolina.
- (d) Suit to recover a money judgment for unpaid contributions shall be maintainable without foreclosing or waiving the lien securing the same, and foreclosing shall be maintainable notwithstanding the pendency of any suit to recover a money judgment.

ARTICLE X

Miscellaneous

Section 1. Notices. All notices, demands, bills, statements or other communications under these By-Laws shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally or if sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, first-class postage prepaid, (i) if to an Owner, at the address which the Owner shall designate in writing and file with the Secretary-Owner, or if no sch address is designated, at the address of the Unit of such Owner, or (ii) if to the Association of Unit Owners, the Board of Directors or the Managing Agent, at the principal office of the Managing Agent, or at such other address as shall be designated by notice in writing to the Owners pursuant to this

Section 2. <u>Invalidity</u>. The invalidity of any part of these By-Laws shall balance of these By-Laws.

+4014

Section 3. <u>Captions</u>. The captions herein are inserted only as a matter of these By-Laws, or the intent of any provision thereof.

Section 4. Gender. The use of the masculine gender in these By-Laws shall be deemed to include the feminine gender and the use of the singular shall be deemed to include the plural, whenever the context so requires.

ARTICLE XI

Amendments to By-Laws

Section 1. Amendments. Except as otherwise provided in this Section, these By-Laws may be modified or amended by a vote of 66-2/3% of the Owners at any regular or special meeting, provided that notice of the proposed amendment shall ing; provided, however, that Section 2 of Article II, insofar as if provides that the Developer, so long as it is the Owner of a certain percentage of Units, as Board of Directors; Section 9 of Article II, insofar as it provides that so long as it is the Owner of a certain percentage of Units, as Board of Directors; Section 9 of Article II, insofar as it provides that the Developer, so long as it is the Owner of one or more Units, may vote the votes appurtenant thereto; writing of the Developer, so long as the Developer shall be the Owner of one or more Units, whether built or not.

Section 2. Recording. A modification or amendment of these By-Laws shall to the Declaration and recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds in and for Forsyth County, North Carolina.

Section 3. Conflicts. No modification or amendment of these By-Laws may be adopted which shall be inconsistent with the provisions of the Unit Ownership Act, or the Declaration recorded herewith, as from time to time amended. If any conflict appears, the Declaration shall control over the By-Laws and the By-Laws Act. Any provisions of the Articles of Incorporation or the By-Laws of the Century Park Condominium Association which may be in conflict with these By-Laws, the Declaration, or the Unit Ownership Act shall be superseded by the provisions of, in the Act. A modification or amendment once adopted and recorded as provided for herein Owners shall be bound to abide by such modification or amendment.

Section 4. Approval of Mortgagees. These By-Laws contain provisions concerning various rights, priorities, remedies and interest of the mortgagees of protection of the mortgagees on which they may rely in making loans secured by mortgages affecting such rights, priorities, remedies or interests of a mortgagee shall be adopted without the prior written consent of such mortgagee. If there is more than one mortgagee the mortgagee or mortgagee or mortgagees holding mortgages on the Units, it shall be sufficient to obtain the written consent of encumbered by mortgages.

"EXHIBIT A"

Development Area

REGISSING at an iron, said iron being the Northwest corner of the B. V. Glenn Property, as recorded in Deed Book 581, Page 2, in the Forsyth County Registry, and said BEGINNING point also being located the following three courses and distances from the Southeast intersection of Century Park Avenue and Brookside Court: North 82 deg. 42 min. 57 sec. East 158.21 ft., South 8 deg. 8 min. East 177.93 ft., and North 87 deg. 37 min. 9 sec. Wast 35 ft. Phones from said point of REGINNING running with Glapu's Morthage line. West 35 ft.; thence from said point of BEGINNING running with Glenn's Northern line, South 87 deg. 37 min. 09 deg. East 35 ft. to a point; thence on a new line, North 8 deg. 8 min. West 177.93 ft. to a point; thence North 46 deg. 10 min. West 61.49 ft. to a point; thence North 2 deg. 40 min. East 136.30 ft. to a point; thence North 31 deg. 30 min. West 134.0 ft. to a point; thence South 85 deg. 24 min. West 94.50 ft. to a point; thence South 10 deg. 02 min. East 82.10 ft.; thence South 85 deg. 24 min. West 60.00 ft.; thence South 04 deg. 14 min. East 55.00 ft.; thence North 89 deg. 59 min. West 152.00 ft; thence North 02 deg. 30 min. West 165.30 ft; thence North 24 deg. 20 min. West 128.20 ft; thence North 31 deg. 56 min. 10 sec. West 669.36 ft; thence North 18 deg. 21 min. West 75.0 ft.; thence North 71 deg. 37 min. East 75.50 ft; thence North 10 deg. 02 min. West 60.00 ft; thence North 81 deg. 16 min. East 70.00 ft; thence North 10 deg. 02 min. West 146.75 ft. to a point in the zoning line running through the Land Limited of America, Inc. Project, which differentiates between the commercial zoning district and the residential zoning district in the Project; thence with said. coning line, South 87 deg. 44 min. 28 sec. West 172.38 ft. to a point; thence South 62 deg. 36 min. West 706.46 ft. to a point; thence South 25 deg. 20 min. East 460.19 ft.; thence South 55 deg. 30 min. East 540.00 ft.; thence North 88 deg. 43 min. 50 sec. East 152.57 ft.; thence South 00 deg. 04 min. 12 sec. West 450.00 ft. to an iron, said iron being the Northeast corner of E. S. Hopkins Property as recorded in Deed Book 513, Page 361, in the Forsyth County Registry; thence with Hopkins' Eastern line South 00 deg. 13 min. 48 sec. East 262.73 ft. to Hopkins' corner with the graveyard; thence with the graveyard line South 07 deg. 38 min. 34 sec. West 333.98 ft. to an deg. 25 min. 45 sec. East 789.70 ft. to an iron in B. V. Glenn's line; thence Worth 88 B. V. Glenn's line Worth 01 deg. 32 min. 22 sec. West 660.01 ft. to the point and place of BEGINNING; containing 33.41 acres, more or less, and being the Development Area referred to in the attached Declaration of Condominium from which the Declarant intends to establish a total of eight (8) Condominium Regimes at some point in the

"EXHIBIT D"

Plans of the Buildings

The plans and specifications of the multi-unit buildings in which are contained the twenty-seven (27) living units in the Century Park Condominium Section One are filed in the Register of Deeds' Office for Forsyth County, North Carolina, in CONDOMICS BOOK / Pages / through 6, which pages are incorporated and which plans are incorporated herein by reference as if actually attached hereto, filed herewith and set forth fully herein, all in compliance with North Carolina General Statutes, Section 47A-15, which is known as the "Unit Ownership Act."